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Directors' Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Shareholder of the company has agreed to take advantage of the reporting concessions available to it under
section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993. Accordingly, there is no further information to be provided in this Annual
Report other than the financial statements and auditor's report.
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Corporate Governance

The Board places great importance on the governance of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (SACL) and its subsidianies (together, the
Group). Performance and compliance are both essential for goad governance.

Reviews of the Board's performance and its peficies and practices are carried out regularly. These reviews identify where improvements can
be made and assess the quality and effectiveness of the industey and cormnpany infermation made available to directors,

The principal {eatures of SACL's corporate governance are:

- a separate Board Audit and Risk Committee (the BARCY. All non-executive directors are members of the BARC and the
charperson of the BARC must be an indepandent director othar than the chairperson of the Board;

- the Chief Executive Qfficer does not parficipate in deliberations of edher the Board or the Appomntments and Remuneration
Committee affecting fns position, remuneration or performance; and

- there are established criteriz for the appointment of new directors and externat consultants are engaged m the search for
new independent directors.

The quidelnes for ficensed insurers 1ssued by the Reserve Banlk of New Zealand (RBNZ) recommand that:
- the Board will have a mirimum of kwa directors;
+ the char will be an independent, non-executive director;
- at least two directors will be ordinanly resident i New Zealand; and
- at least half of the directors will be indgpendent.

The Board sslisfies these requirements.

New directors are invited to participate in an induction programme. All directars regularly consider issues, frends and challenges relevant to
the Group. the financial services industry and the economy.

The Board has adopted a charter and code of ethics for directors. The philosophy underlying the Board's approach to corporate goverriance
is consistent with the ethical standards required of alf employees of the Group.

The Group has implemented and complies with a fit and proper policy and process in refation to determining the appropriateness of its
directors and retevant officers,

Non-executive direcfors do not pariicipate in any of the Group's incentive plans,

As at 30 June 2018, the chairpersen of the Board was Mr G.R. Walker, The other directors were Mr S.R.S. Blair, Mr M.A, Cant, Mr J.P, Hartley,
Mr 5.P. Ward and Mr N.5.J. Stanhope

Change In Board Composition

Foflowing acquisition by AlA, the compositien of the Board of SACL changed. The Chief Executive (Mr N.S.J. Stanhope) continuss as a director
with the remaining directors prior to 2 July 2018 resigning. Five new directors of SACL were appeinted as of 2 July 2018, The new directors
are Mr D.Y.5. Mu, Mr R.5. Mcdonald, Mr W. Liste, Ms T.E. Gattung and Ms EME Fiynn. The new directors were appointed subject to cornpletion
of assessment that each director was a fit and proper person to holg this role, and the approval of the RBNZ.

Existing Board Committees have contimued as described with the snembership as foliows:
+ s af 2 July 2018 the BARC comprised of. Mr R S. Mcdonald, Ms T.E. Gattung and Ms £ M. Flynn,
- As at 2 July 2018 the ARC comprised of: Ms T.E. Gattung, Ms E M. Fiynn and Mr D.Y.S. Mo
Committees of the Board

The Board has delegated specific powers and responsibities to committees of the Board and to management. Key decisions made by ihe
Board comrmittees are reported o the full Board. Management recommends key decisions to the Soard for approval.

There are two permanent Board committees, being the BARC and the Appoiniments and Remunerstion Commuttee. Both cornmittees have

their own charters. Other committees may be formed to carry ou specific delegated tasks when required, An independent director charrs
each cornmittee,

Board Audit and Risk Commitiea
The role of the BARC is 1o

1. Assist the Board in discharging its responsibility to exercise due care, dilgence and skill in relstion to financiaf reporting and control,
conformance with legal requirements affecting the Group, the tdentification and prudent management of the risks to which the Group 15
or may become subject, and the good governance of the Group in relation to those matters, including the oversight of:

- the integnity of external inancizl reporting;

- financial management;

» interral confrol systems;

» ateounting policy and practice;

+ the risk management framework and monitoring complience with that framework;
- related party transactions;

- comglance with applicable laws and standards; and

- without lireiting the generality of the forgoing, complience wiath RBNZ siandards relating to external financial reporting.
2. Ensure the quality, credibility and objectivity of the accounting process, finsnctat reparting and regulatosy disclosure.
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Corporate Governance (eontinuea)

3. Oversee and montor the performance of the internat and external auditors. The BARC has approved an External Auditor Services 2olicy.
That policy refates to the engagement of the external audit firm for non-audif work. The ohyechive of the policy 1s to avoid prejudice to the

independence of the auditer and prevent undus reliance by the auditor on revenue fram the Group. The pelicy ensures the suditor doss
nok:

- assume the rele of management;

- become an advocsie for ther own client; or

= audit work that comprises a direct output of their own professional expertise,
Under the policy the auditer will net provide the following services:
- bookkeeping or services relating to accounting records;

+ hnangral infermation systems design and implementation;

= appraisal or vakzation and fairness opinions,

« actuarial sdvisory services;

- internal audit cutscurcing services;

+ advice on deal structuring and related documentation;

- tax planning and strateqic services,

+ aching a5 a broker-dealer, promoter or underwriter;

+ legal services; or

- executve recruitment or extensive human resource function.

4. Provide a structured reparting iine for internal audit and ensure the objectivity and Independence of internal audit. The Chief Internal
Auditor reporis to the BARC through its chairperson,

5. Consider any CBA Group palicy relevant fo the rofe of the BARC and, if deemed appropriate, adept or recommend that the Board adopt {as

applicable) the policy as a policy of the Group. This will also be applicable under the ownership of AlA international Limited, as at 2 July
2018

6. Actas aformal forum for free and open communication between the Beard, the internal and external auditors, and managernent.,
7. Deal with any other matter which the Board may frem bime to time delegate to the S8ARC.

Appointments and Remuneration Committee

The role of the Appointments and Rervuneration Committee (renamed to Beard Remuneration Cormmittee as at 02 July 2018) 15 to assst the
Board m discharging its responsibilities in relation to;

- the selection, remuneration, education and evatuation of directors;
- the selection, remuneration and evaluation of rnanagerment; and
+ policies relating to dversity for the Board and managerment.

As at 30 June 2018, the rmembers of the Appointment and Remunerstion Committer were Mr G.R. Walker (chairperson), Mr MA. Cant and Mr
S.P. Ward. On 2 July 2018 these members were replaced as noted under Change in Board Composition.

Executives are rewarded with 3 mix of fixed rermuneration and incenfives. Tokal remuneration 15 intended to be market competitive when
compared against simifar roles at peer organisations; as well as reflecting position responsibilities, indvidual competencies; experience and
performance.

Executives’ incentive remuneration is based on a set of clear objectives that will drive sustainable performance. The objectives:
+ reflect Sovereign's strateqic priorities,

+ are based on both financial and non-financial measures that are set at the beginning of the performance perod; and
- discourage excessive risk taking.

Directors and Officers’ Liability Insurance
The Group has effected habibity insurance for its déirectors and officers.
Diversity and Inclusion

The Group 15 comrmitted to diversity and inclusion across its business. The Group's diversity and melusion pricribizs are designed to ensure that

+ the Group's workforce and leadership Is mare reflective of both the communities in which the Group operates and it's customer base:
and

+ the Group has a culture in wrich diversity 15 encouragad, understoad, respected, valued and leveraged so that talented people can thrive
and the Groug's customers and reputation both benefit,

The Group's diversity and inciusion priorities are!
- Diverssty in feadership;
- Inclusive culture; and

- You can be you,

As at 30 June 2018, 42% of ali semor leadership roles and above (permansnt and fulftime rofes of the Executive Leagership Team and their
direct reports), were held by women, Sovereign has z farget that 50% of all seniar leadership rotes and above will 92 held by women by 2020

Talent sourcing processes have been reviewed to ensure that support 15 given to the diversity and inclusion prioritias.
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Income Statement

Premium Income 4 nr 75
Less: Reinsurance expense 4 (48) (50)
Net premium Income 669 £65
Investment income 5 142 96
Other income 3 1
Total operating Income 814 762
Claims expense 6 398 382
Less: Relnsurance recoveries 5 (43) (34)
Net claims expense 3as2 348
Other pperating expenses T 279 2856
EBacrease n life insurance contract fiabilities 17 (24) an
Increase in life investment coatract labiities 17 56 47

663 650
Net profit hefore taxatlon 151 12
Taxation expense o 44 8
Net profit after taxation 3 i07 104

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Net profit after taxation 107 104

Other comprehensive Income/{expense}, net of taxation

Items that will not be reclassified fo the Income Statement:

Remeasurernent of defined benefit plans net of tax 1 1)
Totaf ofther comprehensive Income/(expense), net of taxatlon 1 )
Total comprehensive income 108 103

These staternents are to be read in comjunction with the notes on pages 8 to 40 and the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 4110 42.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 Juna 2018

Balarce at beginning of year 540 228 758
Net profit after taxalion - 07 107
Other comprehensive income, net of taxation - 1 1
Total comprehensive Incoma - 108 108
Ordinary dwidend paid 20 - 13N 13
Balance as af 30 June 2018 540 2058 745
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Balance at beginning of year 540 207 747
Nel profli after taxation - 104 104
Other comprehensive expense, net of kaxation - (1) {1}
Total comprehensive income - 103 103
Ordinary dividend paid 20 - (82) (82)
Balance as at 30 June 2017 540 228 768

These staterments are to be read in conjunction with the notes on pages 8 to 40 and ihe Independent Auditor's Report from pages 41to 42,
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Balance Sheet

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents 12 461 536
Trade and other receivables 15 &0 48
Securitles 1 1,600 1,594
Derivative assels 30 - i
Liabilities ceded under seinsurance 17 10 13
Current taxation asset 2 -
Property, plant and equipment 1B i6
Inangible assets 4 18 6
Retirement benefit surplus 16 1 -
Total assets 2,164 2,234
Total inferest earning and discount bearing sssets 1321 1375
Liabllitles

Trade and other payables 1% 104 108
Derivative liabilities 30 4 1
Lite inveskment contract liabilities T 710 739
Life insurance contract liabilities 7 73 100
Current taxation liability - 9
Deferred taxation liability 18 528 509
Total lfabllities 1419 1,466
Shareholders' Equity

Contributed capital 20 540 540
Retalned earnings 205 228
Total shareholders® equity 745 168
Total Habllitles and shareholders® equity 2,164 2,234
Tolal inferest and discount baaring labilities I 9

The Beard of Directors avtharised these financial statements for issue on éJ August 2018,

A,

Directer Director

These statemants are to be read in conjunction with the notes on pages 8 ta 40 and the Independent Auditor's Report Trom pages 41 to 42,
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash was provided frorn
Premium and deposit premium receipts 736 739
Dividend receipts 12 15
interest receipts 50 48
Reinsurance receipts 38 34
Managernent fees and commission receipts - 1
836 837
Cash was spplied to!
Claims, surrenders and mafurities payments 499 534
Commission paymenis i52 145
Payments to suppliers and employees 132 130
Tax payments 36 44
Reinsurance premivms 48 50
867 203
Net cash flows from operating actlvities (31 (66)
Cash flows from Investing activifles
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from sale of securities 326 481
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 3
Net settlement of {oreign exchange confracts - 37
329 518
Cash was applied to:
Purchase of securities 233 390
Purchasa of property, plant and equipment 1 1
Purchase and development of intangible asseis a 7
Net settlement of foreign exchange contracts 5 -
242 358
Net cash flows from Investing activitles 87 120
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash was applied fo!
Dividends paid 131 82
Net cash flows from financing activities (131) (82)
Sumimary of movernents in cash flows
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5) (28)
Add: cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 536 564
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 461 536
These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes an pages 8 to 40 and the independent Auditor's Report from pages 410 42, a3
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Reconcillation of net profit after taxation to net cash flows from operating activities

Net profit after taxation

107 104
Non-cash ltems included In net profit after taxation
Gain on disposal of intangible assets {3) -
Amortisation and depreciation 5 8
Net realised and unreglised gains 1) (t8)
Non-cash dividends receved [412)) {13)
Decrease in hfe insurance contract liabilities recagnised in the Income Staterment (24 {3
Increase i Lfe investment contract habsities recognised i the Income Skatement 56 AT
Movements In assets and labllitles
Trade and other receivables - increase 12y [§}]
Net incorne tax liability - increase/(decrease) 8 {36)
Trade and other payables - (decrease)/increase 2 7
Decrease m life mvestment contract habilities recognised in the Balance Sheet (85) 1433
Net cash flows from operating activitles (3n {66}

These staternents are io be read in conjunction with the notes on pages & to 40 and the Independant Auditer's Report from pages 41 to 42
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounging Pelicies
General Accounting Policles

Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (SACL) Is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and ts domiciled and incorporated in New
Zealand. The financial staternents presented are those for SACL and its subsidiaries {together, the Group). SACL 15 100% owned by ASE
Group {Life) Limited {ASBGL). The ultimate parent as at 30 June 2018 was Commonweaith Bank of Australia (CBA). SACL's registered
address was Level 2, ASB North Wharf, 12 Jellicoe Streek, Auckiand Central, Auckland 1010. SACL's and the Group's principal areas of
business are fife Insurance and investment mznagement.

On 21 September 2017, CBA announced the sale of 1009 of ds §fe msurance businesses in Ausirafis and New Zealand, of which SACL s
a part, to AlA international Lirited, & subsidiary of AlA Group Lirited (A1A) for AUD $3.8 billion, The sale agreement includes & 20-year
distribution agreement with AlA for the provision of life insurance products to CBA and ASB custemers in Australia and New Zealand.
The New Zezland sale completed on 2 July 2018, Further information in relation to the sale 15 included in Nole 33 Events affer the

Reporting Period. Accordingly SACL remams & part of the CBA group at the reporting gate and these financal statements are
presented on this basis.

SACL 15 a reporting eatiby under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 20i3. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013,

The consolidated financial staternents of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Acceptad Accounting Practice in
New Zealand {NZ GAAP). They comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and the New Zealand eguivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards {NZ IFRS}, other New Zealand accounting standards and authoritative notices {hat are
applicable to entities that apply NZ iFRS, as appropriate for for-profit entities.

Comparative Informnation has been reclassified or restated to ensure consistency with presentation i the current reporting pericd.
These reclassifications and restatements have no impact on net profit after taxation.

There are no new or revised NZ IFRS applicable for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after ¥ July 2017 that would have
a malerwal impact to the Group.

The following new standards relevant to the Group have been issued. The Group does not intend to apply these standards until their
effective dates.

» NZ IFRS 9 Financial insiruments addresses the classification. measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The complete version of N2 IFRS 9 was 1ssued i Seatember 2084, It replaces the guidance in WZ |AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement that relates to the classification and measurement of financisl instruments.

NZ IFRS 9 refains but simgplifies the mixed measurement model angd establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial asseks: armortised cost, fair value Ehrough other comprehensive income and fair value through profd or loss. The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash ftovw characteristics of the finantiaf asset. There is
now a new expecied credit fosses mode! that replaces the incurred loss impairment modetf for financial asseis used in NZ 1AS 39.

NZ IFRS 9 relaxes the requiremenis for hedge effectivenass, and requizes an econemue relationship between the hedged stem and
hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same that is used by management for risk management purposes. The
standard is effective for the Group's reporting period beginning an § July 2018, Early adoption 15 permitied

The Group has assessed the effect of adopling NZ IFRS 9 on its financial statements, deeming the impact not tc be material, ofher
than additional disclosure requirements and changes in presentation,

v NZ [FRS1S Revenue from Contracts with Custemers addresses recognition of revenue from contracts with custorers, It replaces
the current revenue recognition guidance in NZ 1AS 1B Revenue and NZ |1AS W Construciion Contracts and 1s apphicable to all
entities with revenue from contracts with custormers. it sefs out a five-step medel for revenue recognition to depacs the transfer of
prosised goods or services to customers i an amount that reflects the consideration. to which the entity expects to be enhitled in
exchange for those gocds or services. This standard is effective for the Group's reporting periods beginrung on or after 1 Juiy 2018,
Eariy adoption 1s permitted. The Group has assessed the effect of adopting NZ IFRS 15 on its financial statements, deeming the
Impact to be low. Imptementation of NZ IFRS 15 will have no impact on existing revenue recegnition process; hovaver, it will require
additional disclosures and changes in presentation for investment linked products,

Under NZ IFRS 15 the Group will need to report as separate revanue iterns for investment finked products that are currently
reported a5 & component of life investment contract liabilities on {he Income Statement,

« NZIFRS 16 Leases replaces the current guidance in NZ 1AS 17 Leases. Under NZ IFRS 16, a contract is, o coniains, a fease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration. NZ IFRS 16
now requires a lessee to recognise a lease fisbility reflecting future [ease payments and a right-of-use {ROU) asset’ for virtually sif
lease confracts. Included 15 an opticnal exemption for certain short-term ieases and leases of fow-value assels; however, this
exemption can only be apphed by lessees. This standard is elfective for reparting periods beginning on or after ¥ Jan 2019, £arly
adoption is oniy perrnitted following adoption of NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracis with Customers.

The Group is assessing the effects of adopting NZ IFRS 16 on i£5 financtal statemenits, but does not expect the inpact to be materal.
NZ IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise most teases on therr batance sheel. Lessees are required to 1nitially recognise 3 lease
habelity for the obligation fo make fease payments and ROLF assat for the right to use the underlying asset for the term of the lease
term. The lease habifity 1s measyred at the present value of the lease payment to be made over the lease term. The asset wili then
be subject to depreciation, while interest will be recognised on the lease liability over the lease term.

NZ IFRS 16 prescribes two transitional methods for fessees to implernent the new standard. Under the full retrospective approach,
lessees must restate comparative information. Under the cumulative catch up approach, lessees do not need to restste
comparative information, but are required to adjust the cpening value of equity for the accumulztive effect of initially applying NZ
IFRS 16 at the itial date of application. [f this methed is adopted, a number of more specific transitional requiremants and optienal
reliefs also apply.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)

General Accounting Policies {continued)
The transitional zpproach adopted by the Group will be aligned with that taken by the parent company at the time of adoption.

v NZIFRS 7 fnsurance Conlracts was ssued in Aug 2017 as a replacement for NZ IFRS 4 Mnsurance Contracts and is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 3 Jan 2024 [ requires a current measurement model where estimates are re-measured
each reporting period. Condsacts are measured using the bulding blocks of:

- discounted probabiity-weighted cash flows

- an explicit risk adjustment, and

+ a confractual service margin (CSM) representing the unearned profit of the contract which s recognised as revenue aver the
coverage period.

The stendard allows a choice between recognising changes i discount rates either 1n the ncome statement or directly in other
comprehansive income. The ehoree is likely to reflect how insurers account for thelr financial assets under NZ IFRS 9. An optional,

simplified prerniura allocation approach is permitted for the tiabilify for the remaining coverage for short duration cantracts, which
are often written by non-life insturers.

There is a modification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fee approach’ for certain contracts written by lite
nsurers where policyholders share i the returns frem underlying tems, When applying the variable fee approach the eniity's
share of the lair value changes of the underlying items 1s included in the contractual service margin, The results of insurers using
this moedel are therefore likely to be fess volgtile than under the general model.

The new rufes will affect the financial siatements and key performance indicators of all entittes that issue insurance contracts or

investrnent contracts wilh discretionary participation features. The Group is currently assessing the effect of adopting NZ IFRS 17
on its financial statements.

Basls of Preparation

The measurement base adaopted is historica] cost, modified by the fair value measurement of financial instruments, including derivative
contracts, at far value through the Income Statament,

Critical Accounting Esfimates and Judgements

Preparation of finantial staterments reguires management o make estimates and assurnptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accempanying notes, The areas where a high degree of judgement is applied by management, that have the
most significant effect on amounts recogrused in the financial statements are the valuation af: financial instruments (refer notes 1(£) and
25), life insurance contract liabilities and life investment contract habsiities (refer notes 1(k) and 17), intangible assets (refer notes 1th)
and 14) and deferred taxation: Habilty {refer notes ¥i) and 18). Uncertamties exist with respect to ihe interpretation of complex tax
regulations for life insurance activities. Given the complexily of life insurance fax legislation and the assumptions inveived, adjustments
to incorme tax expense :n future periods may be reguirad,

Presentation Currency and Reunding

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is New Zealand dellars. All amounts are presented in reuflions, unless otherwise
stated.

Particular Accounting Policles
Accounting policies have been consistently applied o all periods presented, unless ctherwise stated,
{a} Basls of Consolidation

Where It 15 determined that there is a capacity to contrel, the Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of a

parent and all its subsidieries using the acquisition method of consclidation. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has

rights, to variable returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the abilty to affect those returns through its power aver -
the investee. Subsidiaries are consofidated from the date on which control is fransferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidatad from the date that control ceases. SACL has 100% ownership of each of its subsidiaries (refer note 13). There are no
substantial rernoval rights and it has controlling economic interests.

Alliniragroup balances and transactions have been eliminsted in preparing Ehe consolidated financial statements.
SACL Group Comparves Acting as Trustee or Manager of Superannustion Schemes

As at the balance date, the Group provides investment management services for the Sovereign Superannuation Retirernent Fund
{SSRF). The assets and liabilities of SSRF are not included in the Group financial statements as there is ne capacity to control.

{b) Forelgh Currency Transkation

All foreign currency monetary assets and hshilties are translated to New Zealand currency at the exchange rate ruling as at
balance date.

Non-monetary assets and liabiities denominated in fareign currencies, maasured at far vaiue, are translated to New Zealand
currency at the exchange rate rulng at the dates that the values were determined. Forewgn currency exchangs differences
refating to securities and derivative financiat instruments are ;mcluded in investment income or ather income

Foreign currency transactions are translated to New Zealand currency at the exchange rate ruhng at the date of the transaction,

pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policles (continued)

(c>

td}

Revenue Recognition

Revenue 15 recognised (o the extent that it 1s probable that econonme benefits will flow to the Group, and ihat the revenue and

stage of completion of the transaction can be relisbly measured. The principal sources of revenue are premium income and
tnvestment income.

Fremium lncome

{1} Life Insurance Contracts
Premiums received for providing services and bearing risks are recogrised as revenue on an accrual basis.

(i Life Investrent Contracts
Premiums received are split. with the fee portion recognised as revenue on an accruat basks and the deposit portion
recognised as an increase in ife investment contract liabilities.

Initial entry fee income on Bife investment contracts is recagnised as revenug at the outset of the contract only 1f a specific inifiat
service (for which the fee refates) is provided by the Group at that time. Othervase initial entry fee income s deferred as a
component of bfe investrment contract abilittes and 1s amorhised as related services are provided under the contract,

Investment income

Interest incorne is recognised in the Income Statement using the effective interest method. Dividend incame 1s recognised in the
Ingorne Staterment when the Group's fright of receipt is established. Realised gains and lusses on Bnancial instrurments are included
as part of mvestment wncome, Unrealised gains and losses from fair value re-measurement of financial instruments are aiso
included in investment income (refer to note ().

Other lncorne
Other income I1s recognised o an acerual basis.

Expense Recognition

Claims

Life insurance contract claims are recognised as an expense when a lizbility has been established, Ciaims under life investrment
contracts represent withdrawals of investrent deposids and are recognised as & reduction in ife investmant confract liabilities.
Acguisition Costs

Acquisition costs are the fixed and variable costs of accepling, 1ssuing and intbially recording policies, including intial commission

and simifar distribution costs. Acquisition costs do not Include general growth and development costs thal are not specifically
related o acquisition activity.

Acquisition Costs - Life Insurance Confracts
Acguisition costs attributable {o hfe insurance confracts are deferred as an element of life insurance contract liabilifies. These
costs are amortlsed over khe Iife of the policies written, Unamortised acquisition costs are a component of the hfe insurance

contract lisbilities, Armcrkization of acquisition costs are recognised in the Income Statement as a component of 'net change In
insurance contract liabilities’ at the same bme as policy margins are released

Acquisifion Costs - Life Invesiment Coniracts

Cammussion that varies with ang 1s directly related ta securing new contracts is capitalised as & deferred acquisition cost asset and
1s Incfuded in intangible assets. The deferred acquisition cost asset is subsequently amortised over the iife of the contracts and 1s
recognised in other operating expenses in the Income Statement.

Mainfenance and Investment Management Expenses

Maintenance costs are the fixed and variable costs of administering palicies subsequent to sale and are recognised in the Income
Siaterment on an accrual basis. These include general growth and development costs. Maintenance costs meluda alf operating
cosks other than acquisition and invesiment management costs.

lavestment managersent costs are the fixed and variable cosis of managing snvestment funds and are recogrised i the Income
Statement on an accrual basis,

Cther Operating Fxpenses
All other operating expenses are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis,

Qther operating expenses also intlude employee benetis, depreciation, amortisation and other management costs. £mployee
benefits include salaries and wages. annual and leng service leave, annual bonuses, KivaSaver contribuktons, and premiurns on
employee ife, disability incorne and medical schernes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Pelicles {continued}

(e} Dividend Recognition

1))

Ordinary dividends are recogrused as a movement in eguity 1n the reporting pericd within which they have been approved by the
SACL Board.

Where a dividend is declared post reporting date, but prior to the date of issue of the financial staternents, disclosure of the
declaration 1s made in the notes to the financeal staterents buk no liability is recognised on the Batance Sheet.

Financlal Instruments
BASIS OF RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

The Group classifies financlal mstruments into cne of the following categories at initiks! recognition: financial assets at fair value
through the Income Staternent, held for trading, loans and receivables, financtal habiibies at fair value through fhe ncome
Statement and financial liabiliites at amoriised cost. Regular purchases and sales of financial asseis are recognised and
derecognised, as applicable, using {rade date accounting.

Some of these cateqories require measurerent at fair value. Where available, quoted market prices are used as a measure of fair
value, Where guoted market prices do not exist, fair values are estimated using present value or other market accepted valuation
technigues, using methods and assumplions that are based on market conditions and risks existing as st balance date.

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there 15
objective evidence of mpairmant, Impairrent losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows, at the originai
effective interest rate or approimation thereof, and comparing the resultant present value with the assets current carrying
amount. An impairment loss 15 reversed if the subsequent increase in the recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring alter the Impairment loss was recegnised. The impatrment {oss is reversed only to the extent that the financiat
assel's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have beep determined if ng impairment foss had baen
recognisad.

Financial assats are derecognised when the rights to receive cash ftows from the financial assets have expired. Derecognition also
occurs when the rights to recewve cash flows from financial assets have been transferred together with substantially all of therr
risks and rewards. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT

Assets in this category are measured at fair value at inception and on an on-going basis and include;

Securities

Securities held by nfe insurance compantes are recagnised at fair value through the Income Statement at inception because they
back life insurance contract lisbikties or life investment ceoniract liabilities. Gains and losses arising from the fair value
remeasurement of securities ace included as part of investment income in the Income Statement.

Secunties include eguity securthes, fund certificates, property securities, and fixed interest securities.

HELD FOR TRADING

Forward currency contracts are used to reduce the Group's expesure to currency movements affecting the market value of the
Group's investments denominated in foreign currencies.

Derivative financial instrumeants are recorded at fair value through the Income Statement, based on market accepted valuation
technigues using observable macket inputs. Subseguent gains and losses ansing from the fair vakue remeasurerent of derivative
financiai nstruments are recogrised immediately in invesiment income in the income Statement. All derivatives used by the Group
are classified as held for trading as they do net meet the criteria for hedge accounting under NZ 1AS 39.

The Group racognises derivatives in the Balante Sheet at their fair value. Derivative assets are the fair value of dervatives which
have & positive fair vaiue, Derivative liabilities are the fair value of derivatives which have & negative fair value,

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Assets in this category are recognised nitially al fair value plus transaction cosis and are subsequently measurad at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for uncollectible amounts. Loans and receivables include:

Cash and Cash Fquivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include bank current accounts, cash on deposit and registered certificates of deposit, readily
convertible to known amaounts of cash, that are subject to an insigmificant sk of changes in valuge. Assels in this category are at

face value and interest is taken to the incorne Staternent when earned. Bank overdrafts are shown within cash and cash
equivalents if the net position 15 an asset due to the Group's right o cffset overdrafls within its banking facdity.

Trave and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables mclude investenent receivables, amounis due from refated parties, amounts due from agents ang

other current assets. These assels are shorl term in nature and the carrying 2mount includes allowances for impaired receivables
and therefore is considered a reasonable estimate of fair valua,

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME STATEMENT

Life investrent contract labilbes are measured at far value, with subsequent gains and losses arising from fair value
remeasurement recognised in the Income Statement, Refer to nete 1(k) for mare details of fife investment contract liabilities.

P
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
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Financial Instruments {continued)
FINANCEAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

This category includes ali financial liabdities other than those designated by the Group as at far value through the Income
Statement Ligbilities in thss category include:

Trade and Other Fayables

Trade and ofher payables includes amounis due o agents, outstanding claims, investment creditors, trade creditors and accruals,
amounts due to related parties and other payables. Lisbilitties in this category are snitially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs After wnutial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation z2nd imparment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment less the estimated residual value 15 depreciated over thair useful ives on a straight-ine
bass, Depreciabion of work in progress will not begin until the asset 15 available for use 1.2. when it 15 in the location ang condition
necassary for it to be operating in the manner intended by management, The estimated useful ¥ves of the rmajor assels are:

E Leaseheld improvements and services 10-18 years

4 Office equipraent, furniture and fittings and computer equipment 3-10 years

Preperly, plant and equipment assets are reviewed for imparment at [lzast annually and whenever evenis or changes I
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset's carrying arnount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than s estimated recoverable amount. Any impairment {055 15
recognised mhsnedistely in the Incorne Statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use,

Intangible Assets

Internally Developed Salivare, Acguired Software Licences and Application Software

The Group generally expenses computer seftware costs in the year incurred. However, some costs associated with developing
identitiable and unique softvare products controlled by the Group, Including empioyee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads, are capitahsed and treated as intangible assets when certain criteria are met, Acquired computer software licenses are
capitaised on the basis that they are costs incurred to acquire and to use specific scftware, These assets are amortised using the
straght-line method over their usefyl Iives {nof exceeding three years),

Ofher Infangible Assels and Deferred Acquisition Costs

Costs for the right to service policies have been capitahised and treated as intangible assets. These assets are amorhised using the
straight-hine methed over their useful ives, Other aperating costs (refer note 1(d)) that vary with, and are diectly related to secuning
new life investment policies. are capitatised as s deferred acquisition cost intangible asset. and are subseguently amortised over the
life of the contracts.

> Agency purchases 18 -54 months
H4 Deferred acquisition cosés 6-17 years

Intangible Assels impairment Reviews

[ntangible assets are assessed at an asset level when they generate independent cash inflows, otherwise they are grouped into Cash
Generating Units (CGU) for imparment purposes Impawrment reviews are performed annually to identify events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. I the asset or the CGU's carrying amount is greater
than its estirnated recoverable ameunt, the carrying amount of the assef or CGU is writien down to s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount 15 the higher of the asset or COU's fair value fess costs to sell and the vaiue in use. Any impairment 10ss 1S
recognised immedhately in the Incoma Statement

Taxation

Tax expense for tha peniod comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in the Income Statement, except to the extent that
it refztes to stems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the tax 1s recogmsed in olther
comprehensive incorne or directly in equity, respectively,

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
balarce date after taking advantage of all allowable deductions under current taxation legisiation, It also includes any adjustment to
tax paysble n respact of previous fnancizl years. Current fax 1s recognised &5 a liabilsy (or asset) to the extent that € is unpaid (or
refundable).

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for femporary differences between the carrymg amounts
of assets and fiabilities for financial reporting purpcses and the amounts used for taxation purposes, The amount of defarred tax
provided is based on the expacted manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habiltias, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at balance dafe.

In accordance with NZ IAS 12 /rcome Taxes, a deferred taxation asset 1s recognised only o the extent that it is probable (Le more
likely than notd that a future faxable profit will be available against which the asset can be ufitised. Deferred taxstion assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will be realised, Any reduction is recognised in the
Income Staterment,

Sovereign Assurance Company Limited and Subsidiaries
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018

1 Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)
(i Taxatlon (continued)

Tax fiabirites and assets are transferred among group companies through sntercompany accounts af the current tax rate 1T, and
only if, the enhittes concerned have a legzlly enfcrceable night to meke or receve a single nst payment and the entities intend {o
make or receve such a net pavment or o recover the asset snd settle the fiabity simutanecusly.

Life fnsurance Tax

From 1 July 2010, ife insurers have been subject to a new fax regime. Two tax bases are maintained; the shareholder base which s
subject to tax on hfe risk products (preriurms less claims and expenses) and net nvestment income from shareholder funds, and
the policyholder base wivch (S subject to tax on nel mvestment income frem policyholder funds. The Iife insurer pays fex on both
bases at the prevailling corporate tax rate of 28%b (30 June 2017 2836} As the life insurer is taxed as proxy far the policyholder,
returns to policyholders are fax exempt

The regime 15 applicable to all ke insurance policies, irrespective of when they were ssued However, the new reqime offers a
concessional tax treatment {known as a transiticnal adustment) for life insurance policies that were in foree prior {o 1 July 20010
The impact of the transtional adjustment 5 that it effectively treats designated policies (known as grandparented policias) as
hawng income tax levied on a basis equivalent to the e office base under the old iax regime. In general, grandparented status
lasted for 5 yaars from 1 July 2010, However, for ceriain policy types, namely level term policies, the grandparented status can be
for the duration of the policy

Goods and Services Tax

Where a transaction is subject to Goods and Services Tax {GST), the financial statements have been prepared so that all
components are stated exclusive of GST, with the exception of {rade recevables and trade payables, which includes G5T invoiced.

1) Provisions

A provision is recegnised in the Balance Sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as & result of past
avents: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation. and a reliable estimate <an be made of the
arnount of the abligaticn

{k) Llfe Insurance Business
Statutory Obhgations

The New Zesland insurance industry is regulated by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand {RBNZ), under the Insurance {Prudentia
Supervision) Act 2010 (IPSA). IPSA requires alf entities carrying on insurance business in New Zealand (as defined by IPSA) to hotd
a hcence. SACL holds a full licence under IPSA. Key elements of the insurance prudential supervisien regime nclude mimmum
solvency reguirements and regular reporiing to Ehe RBNZ, the need for directers and cther relevant officers to meet fit and proper
standards, and governance and nisk management requirements

1PSA requires that a life insurer must at all times have at least one statutory fundin resgect of its tife insurance business. On i July
2013, SACL established a statutory fund, {he Scvereign Statutory Fund Mo 1, that relates sclely to SACL's hife insurance business as
defined by IPSA. SACL's standalone health insurance business (which 1s not classified as life insurance business under IPSAY and
business that does net relate to contracts of insurance are included in SACL's Other Fund. The activilies of the statulory fund are

reporied in aggregate with the Other Fund in lhe financial statements Further information on the statutory fund is provided in
notes 21 anc 28.

SACL has an insurer financial steengih rating of A+ (Superior) issued by international raiing agency AM. Best Compansy Inc. with an
effective date of 15 December 2017,

Life insurance and Life Inveskment Contracts - Classification

The &roup's life insurance business is spht between fe insurance contracts and hfe nvestmant contracts. Life insurance contracts
are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of NZ IFRS 4 Insurance Confracts Life investment contracis are accounted
for in accordance with NZ 1AS 39

Life snsurance coniracts are those contracts that transfer sgnificant insurance risk. Lefe investment contracts are those contracts
with no significant insurance risk, bug which give rise to a financial liability under NZ 1A5 39

Contracts that contain a discretionary participation feature are also classified as e insurance contracts.

The financial reporting methodolegy used {0 determine the value of e ssurance contract fabilities is referred to as Margin on
Services {MoS), as set out in New Zealand Society of Actuaries Professional Standard No. 20; Defermination of Life Insurance
Folcy Liabiifres. oS 1s designed to recagnise profits on life insurance policies as services are provided to palicyhalders and income
15 received Under MoS, the planned profit margins of prermium racemved less expenses is deferred and amortised over the bife of the
contract, whereas [osses are recognised immediately

Life insurance confract Labiities are calculated n & way that allows for the systematic release of planned prolit margins as services
are provided fo policyholders and the revenues relating to those services are recewved Services used to determine profit
recognition inclyde the cost of expected insurance claims and annuty payments Life insurance contrack fabilbies are generally
determined as the present value of all future expected payments, expenses, taxes and profit margmns, reduced by the present value
of & future expected premiums.
Peofit s analysed into the following calegeries:
iy Planned Margins of Revenues Over Expenses ==
At the time of writing & policy and at each balance date, best estimate assumptions are used to determine all expected future ng,

payments (ncluding tax) and premiums. Where actual exparience repiicates best estmate assurnptions, the expected profit o —
margins wil be released to profit over the iife of the policy wg
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

(k} Life Insurance Business {continued)

U]

{iy  The Difference Between Aclual and Assummed Experience

Experience profits and losses are realised where actual experience differs from best estimate assumptions. Instances giving
rise fo experence profits and losses include variations in claims, expenses, mortality, discontinuance and investrment returns
(to the extent the shareholder assumes mvestment risk)

{0y Changes fo Underlying Assumnpfions
Assumpkons used for measuring 4fe Insurance contract lisbilibes are reviewed each year. Where the review leads to a change
in assumptions, the change 15 deemed to have occurred from the end of the year.

The financuial effect of a change in discount rates resuiting from changes in market conddions 1s recognised n the year Ehat the
rates are changed. The financial effect of all other changes to assumptions 15 recogrised in the Income Statement over the
future years during which services sre provided to policyholders. if, based on best estimate assumptions, written business of a
group of related products s expected to be unprofitable, ke total expected loss for {hat related product group is recogaised in
the Income Statement immediately When loss making business becaemes profitable previously recognised losses are reversed.

W) Investment Earnings on Assets in Excess of Policy Liabilibies
Profits are generated from mnvestment assets in excess of those required to meet policy habities. Investment earnings are
directly influenced by market conditions and as such this component of MoS profil will vary {rom year to year,

Lite investment Coniract Liabiities

All contracts 1ssued by the Group which are classified as life nvestrment contracts are unit hnked. The far value of a unit linked

contract is determined using the cusrent wnit values that reflect the fair value of the financial assets backing the contract, muiplied
by the number of enifs attributed to the contract holder.

Identification of Assefs Backing Life Investment Conlracls

All contracts 1ssued by the Group that are classified as ife insurance contracls arez non hnked. The assets backing unit nked
contracts are in separate investment funds from those backing aon linked contracts.

Ramsurance
Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers all meet the definition of an insurance contrack.

As the reinsurance agreements provide for indemrafication of the Group by the reinsurers against loss or liability, reinsurance
ncome and expenses are recognised separately in the Income Staternent when they becorne due and payable 1n accardance with
the remnsurance agreements.

Reinsurance recaveries for claims are recogrised as reinsurance income. Reinsurance premiums are recognised as reinsurance
expenses.

Lizbilitizs ceded under reinsurance are the present value of future resnsurance claims receivable and premms payable by the
Group and have been classified as an asset, lizbikties ceded under reinsurance. Reinsurance assets are assessed for mmpairment on a
guarterly basis.

Retirement Benefits Obligations

The Groug cuerently sponsors the SSRF superannwuation pian for its employees and ex-employees The assets and habilities of this
plan are held ndependently of the Group's assets in a separate trustee administered fund. The plan has both a defined benefit ang
defined contribution section and has been closed ko new members since 01 July 2004,

Full disciosures of the defined benefit and contribution plan as required by NZ IAS 19 Employee Benafifs have not been presented an
the basis that these assets and lisbifities are not material in the context of the Group's Balance Sheet.

Defined Benefit Plans .
Defined benefit plans are formal arrangements under which an entity provides post-emnpioyment benelits.

The asset recogmised on the Balance Sheet n respect of SSRF s calculated as the present value of the defined benefit obhgation and
the fair value of the plan's assets deducted. The discount rate is the yield st balance date on government securities which have
approximately the same terms to maturity. Where the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recogmised asset 1s bited to
the present value of any future employer contributions to the plan that can be funded from the plan surplus,

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from the above valuation are charged or credited directly to retained earmings.

Defned Contribution Plans

The SSRF Refined Contribution Plan 15 a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed coniributions to the plan
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribuions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benafits relating to employee service in the current and prior years.

Contrebutions to SSRF are recognised as an expense In the Income Statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
{m) Contingent Liablitties

{n}

{0}

(p}

The Group discloses a contingent liability when it has a possible obligation arising from past events, that will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-gccurrence of ong or rore uncertain fuiure events not wholly withuin the Group's control. A contingent liability
15 disclosed when a present obligation 15 not recognised because 1t 15 not probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle an cbligation, or the amount of the obligation cannet be measured with sufficient refiability

Cash Flow Statement

This has been prepared using the direct approach, modified by the netting of cash flows associated with related parties and foren
exchange forward confracts. For these iterns, the Group considers that knowtedge of gross receipis and payments is not essential
fo understanding the actwities of the Group and it is considered acceptable o report only the net cash Hows, This 15 based on the
fact that the turnover of these items is guick. the amounts are large. and the maturities are short.

Segment Reporting

The Grouyp is not required to disclose geographic or eperating segment information under NZ IFRS & Operating Segments. On this
basis there are no disclosures relating to the Group's geographic or operating segments,
COperating Leases

Leases i which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are refained by ihe lessor are classified a5 operating

leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the peried of the
lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
2 Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

The affective date of the policy liabilities and solvency margin calcalation for the Group 15 30 June 2018, Bartosz Prwcewscz FIAA, as the
Chief Actuary of SACL, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data from which the amount of life insurance, and fife investment contract
liabilties has been determined.

The projection method 15 used to determine ife msurance, end life investraent contract liabilities. In principle, the projection method
uses expecied cash fiows (premiums, investment income, surrenders or benefit payments, expenses) plus profit margins to be released
in future periods, to calculate the present value of contract labdities.

Life insurance and life investment contract liabilities have been determamed In accordance with Professional Standard No. 20 of the New
Zealand Society of Actuaries and the requiremants of NZ IFRS 4,

Key assumplions used in defermining kife insurance and hfe investment contract labilities are as follows:
(a} Discount Rates
iy  Business Where Benefits are Contractually Linked (o the Performence of Assets Held

The discount rates used to determune life insurance and Ofe investment contract habiities reflect the expected future gross
returns on the Group's current strategec asset emix, Fixed interest investments were assumed o earn 2.8% pa (30 June 2017 31%}
and equity investments .99 pa (30 June 2017 7.19%) The discount rates used for individual classes of business varied between
29% pa and 4.1% pa (30 June 2017 3.1%6 and 4.49%).

(i)  Other Business

The discount rate used to determine life insurance contract habilities 15 a risk free discount rate. Single point discount rates have
been determined so thak the term structure of the products is taken info account in setting the discount rate. For annuities and
risk business rates between 2 6% and 3.7% pa were used (30 June 2017 2.8% {o 3.8%).

{b) Profit Carrlers
Pelicies are divided into related product groups with profit carriers and peafit margins as follows:

Pollcy type Carrler
Risk Expected claims payments
Savings business Funds under management/investrnent management expenses

Traditional participating business  Bonuses
(c) Investment and Maintenance Expenses

Future maintenance and investment expenses have been assumed at current levels in line with contractual fees set out in
agreemenf with Sovereign Services Limifed {SSL), 2 wholly owned subsidiary of SACL. and external fund managers. Future
inflation has been assumed fo be 2.0% pa (30 June 2047 2.095) for determining fulure expenses and sflation linked increases in
benelits and premiums.

(d} Taxatlon

Tie rates of taxation enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the valuation are assumed to continue inko the future. The
corperate fax rate used s 28% (30 June 2017 289%). Allowance has been made for the "farr dividend rate” tules that apply to
global equibies, where iax 1s paid on 5% of the markel value of investments, regardiess of the actual rate of investment income,

(e} Rates of Growth of Unit Prices

Unit price growth 15 assumed to be equal to the assumed invesiment earning rates less tax and asset based charges for each
produck.

()  Mortality and Morbidity

Projected future rates of mortality experience are based on a proportion of the NZ97 tables, These are then agjusted by
comparing the standard tables with the Group's own experience using geornetric smoothing techniques or moving averages.

Annuitant mortality 15 assumed to be a propertion of the PMAS2 and PWFS2 tebles, adjusted for mertality impravements prior to
and after the valuation date.

Int general, mortalty assumpltions are reviewed based on annua!l experience studies.

The following changes have been made te mortality assurnptions for 30 June 2618

- The mortality assurnption for modern life business has been reduced by 2%.

- There was a reduction in Ehe long term merkaiity assumption for workplace.

- Overali, there was a sight reduction in credit insurance mortality.

For the other business, there have been no changes in martahty assumptions since 30 June 2017,

The proportions of NZ97 adopted for the major products range from 47%5 to 9696 (30 June 2017 48% to 96%).

Projected future morbidity expersence are based on a combination of reinsurers' tables, indusiry tables, industry experignce and
internat investigations. For significant classes of business, internal experienca 1s compared with rainsurers' tables using geomatric
smoothing technigues or moving averages.

e

e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
2 Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (continued)

{f) Mortality and Morbldity (continued)
In general, morbidity assurmnptions are reviewed based on annual experience stugdies
The iptlowing changes have been made to morbidity assumptions for 30 June 2018:
- Disability Income (DI} claim duration assumption has increased.

- Lwing Assurance Benefit {LAB} claim assumptions have been reviewed with the Maodern LAB Retall increasing by 2% and
hodern LAB Bancassurance reducing by 6%,

- Modern Tatal and Permanent Disability (TPD) base assumptions have been increased by 1195 and selection discounts have
been introduced, resulting in an overall iIncrease in assumplion,

- Overall, there was a slight reduction in credit insurance morbadity.
- Health claims assumptions have seen a number of changes resulting in an overall increase in projected claim costs,
(g} Rates of Dlscontinuance

Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawal, partial terrnination and transfer of policies to paig-up are primarily based on
investigations of the Group's own experience,

Discontinuance rates were reviewed for 30 June 2018,

Future rates of discontinuance are:

As at 30 June 2018

Life rate for age <30 9% 14% 6% 15% 15% 14% 13% 13% 12% 10%
30-39 6% 10% 14% 13% 12% 12% 1% 1% 10% 9%
40 - 49 7% 10% 14% 13% 12% 12% 1% 1% 1% 10%
50 - 64 B 13% 1% 14% 15% 14% 14% 15% 13% 12%
65+ 13% 17%  23% 21% 2% 20% 20% 19% 19% 18%

Life level to age 8O <30 16% 13% 14% 13% 1% 8% 3% 7% &% 6%
30-39 12% 10% 10% 9% 8% 6% 6% 5% 5% 4%
40 - 49 a% &% 7% 6% 5% 4% 455 3% 3% 3%
50~ 64 6% 7% 8% 6% &% 5% 5% 4% 4% 3%
65+ 5% 6% T% 6% 6% 5% 4% A% 4% 3%

As at 30 June 2617

Life rate for age <30 8% 1% 15% 15% 5% 13% 13% 2% % 10%
30-39 6% 9% 13% 13% 129% 1% 10% 10% 10% 9%
40 -49 6% 9% 13% 12% 12% 1% 1% 1% 1% 9%
50 -84 &% 1% 17% 158% 16% 14% 14% 14% 14% 11%
65+ 13% 7% 23% 22% 2%  20% 2%  20%  20% 18%

Lie level to age 80 <30 16% 9% 14% 10% 9% 8% 9% 8% 7% 6%

- 30-39 12% 7% 10% 8% 6% 6% 6% &% 5% 4%
40-49 9% 4% 8% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3%
50-64 5% 5% 8% 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%
&5+ 2% 5% 8% &% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 3%

Ofher Risk <30 20% 12% 20% 12%

30-3% 14% 12% 14% 12%

40-49 1% 1% 1% 12%

50 -84 10% 12% 10% 13%

65+ B% 159% 8% 16%
Participating 3% 3%
Savings 8% 8%

{k)} Basls of Calculatlon of Surrender Values

Surrender values are set using an asset share appreach and taking inte consideration equity bebween conbinuing and ferminatin
policyholders.

The surrender value basis was changed for June 2018, with some increases at lenger durations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
2 Actuarlal Assumptions and Methods (continued)

{} Participating business

For most parbicipating business, bonus rates are set such that, over long periods, the returns to policyholders are commensurate
with the investment returns achieved on the relavant assets, together with other sources of profit anising from this business.
Distributions are split between poficyholders and shareholders wath the valustion sllowing for shareholders to share mn

distributions at a maximum aflowable rate of 209 (3¢ June 2017 208%).

in applying the policyholders' share of profits te prowde bonuses, consideration s given fo equity between generations of
policyholders and equity between the various classes and sizes of policies in force, Assumed future bonus rates included 1 Iife
insurance contract liabilities were set such that the present value of life insurance contract liabslities equates to the present value
of assets supporting the business together with assumed future mvesiment returns, aliowing for the sharehalder's right to

participate 1n distributions.

Assurned fuiure bonus rates per annuim for the major classes of individual participating business were:

Ex-Colenial policies Bonus rate on sum assured

Bonus rate on existing bonus

Ex-Prudentiat policies Bonus rate on sum assured

Bonws rate on existing bonus
Ex-NZI policies Bonus rate on sum assured
Bonus rate on existing bonus
Ex-Matropobtan [ife policies Bonus rate on sum assured
Bonus rate on existing bonus

Investment account poficies Crediting Rate

() Impact of Changes in Assumptions

0.20%
0.20%

0.25%
0.25%

0.13%
0.25%

0.00%
0.00%

3.23%

0.20%
0.20%

0.25%
0.25%

0.13%
0.25%

0.00%
0.00%

3.16%

Refer to note 1tk) for an explanation of the treatment of changes in actuarial assumplions an fife insurance contract liabilitles. The

impact of changes in attuarial assumptions made during the reporting period are;

; .

Market related changes to giscount rates 21 {49
Nenr-market relsted changes fo discount rates -

Mortahty and morbidity 23)

Discontiruance rates 42

Mainlenance expenses 31

Other assumptions [E ] (22)

3 Sources of Profit

—_— -

&}

Life Insurance

Planned margins of revenues over expenses

Unwind of discount on pelicy liabilities

Difference between actual and assumed experience

Effects of changes in underlying assumpkions

Reversai/ (recognition) of future expected losses

Net profit after taxation arising from [lie Insurance contracts

Life Investment

Planned margins of fevenues over expenses

Difference between actual and assurned experience

Net profii after taxation arising from life investment contracts
Shareholder nvestment earnings

Total life activitles

Net profit after taxation attributed to shareholders

Sovereign Assurance Company Limited and Subsidiaries
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4 Premlum Income

Life insurance contract premiums T8 T4
Life invastmant contract deposit premiums and fee income 22 25
Total premiums 738 739
Less: Deposit premiums recognised as an increase In life mvestment contract Jiabilities 17 {21} {24)
Total premitm Income n? 715
Less: Reinsurance expanse (48} (50)
Tatal net premium Income 669 565

% Investment Income

Dividends 18 23
Realised and uryealised gains 72 59
Total equity securitles and fund certificates 20 82
Dividends 4 5
Realised and unrealised gains/{losses) 6 (6}
‘Total property securitles 10 41]
Interest 49 50
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) 12 (54)
Total fixed Interest securitles and cash 61 4
Rezlised and unrealsed {losses)/gaimns {19) 19
Total derivatlves {19} 19
Total Investment income 142 96

& Claims Expense

Death, disability and medical claims 362 335
Maturities 31 43
Surrenders 104 167
Annuigies 4 4
Totai claims 501 549
Less: Claims recognised as a decrease in life investment contract habilibies i (106) (16T}
Total clalms expense 395 382
Less: Reinsurance recoveries {43) (34)
Total net clalms expense 352 348
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7 Other Operating Expenses

Initial cornmissian 59 56 - - 59 56

Other acquisition expenses 59 64 1 2 60 66
Policy acquisition expenses 1:] 120 1 2 19 122
Renawal commission 89 50 3 3 9z a3
Other maintenance expenses 61 66 2 2 63 &8
Policy mainfenance expenses 150 156 5 5 155 161
Investment management expenses 3 1 2 1 5 2
Tota! life expenses 271 277 8 3] 279 285
Other expenses - i
Total other operating expenses 279 286
Included above:
Operaling lease expenses 1 5
Amortisation of intangible assets a &
Pepreciztion 2 2
Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries 75 79

Defined contribution plan expense 2 2
Fiduciary expenses 2 2

8 Auditor's Remuneration

PricewaterhouseCoopers is the appointed auditor of the Group for the current and prior year,
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers are as follows;

Fees for the audif and revlew of financial statements BB1 gi0
Review of controls refating to superannuation schemes - 22
Audit of solvency return 41 39
Risk assessment audit of anti-money laundering and counter financing of terrorism - 15
Olher assurance related services 8 n

Gther assurance related services include work performed over the off-quarter disclosure staternents and other agreed upon procedures.

9 Taxation

e

Current taxation expense 25 31
Deferrad taxation expense/{benefit) 8 19 {23)
Total taxatlon expense recognised in the Income Statement 44 8

The taxation expense on the Group's net profil before taxation differs trom the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic
rate as follows:

Net proflt before taxation 151 112
income tax at the current rate of 28% (2017 28%) 42 3
Investment income adjustments (23) {12)
lmnputation and PIE tax credit adwstents 3) 2}
Movement in investment contract liabilibies and adjustmanis 17 14
Movemaent in insurance contract liabsdities, reserves and adustmendts 1 (19}
Other non-deductible expenditure 1 -
Prior peried adjustments 03] {4
Total taxation expense recognised In the income Statement 44 8
Weighted average effective tax rate 29% 7%

e
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10 Imputation Credit Account

Companies may atéach imputation credits fo dividends paid, which represent the New Zealand tax aiready paid by the company or tax
group on profits. New Zealand resident shareholders may claim a tax credit fo the value of the imputation credit attached to dividends.

The Group was a member of an imputation group wiih members of the Commonwealth Bank of Australia Group until 30 June 2018.
However, due to the shareholder change the closing batance of this iImputation credit account is no fonger avallable to the Group,

The Group has formed & new AlA Sovereign smputation group. The balance of lax pavable at 30 June 2018 that will be cred:ted to the
new imputation group is $4 million.

11 Securities

Equity securities and fund certificates 674 681

Fixed interest securities
New Zealand government stock 727 o
Corporate bonds 24 25
Foreign government stock 109 104
Totai fixed Interest securlties i) BEOD B39
Property securities 66 T4
Total securifles 1,600 1,594

As at 30 June 2018 no investments were pledged under repurchase agreements or other arrangements (30 June 2037 nil), A maturity
analysis for equity securties. fund certificates. and property securities has not teen presented because these invesiments are liquid
assets and the tirning of realisation 1s not known.

(a) Fixed Interest Securltles

Maturity analysis:

Under one year 8 6
Beltween one and two years 8 9
Between two and three years 31 7
Between three and four years 8 35
Between four and five years 570 7
Greater than five years 235 772

860 835

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash af bank and on deposit - 455 534
Fareign currency deposits 3 2
Total cash and cash equlvalents 461 536

1
e
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13 Principal Subsidiaries

The Group has an interest in the following entities:

Sovereign Services Limsted 100 Adomnistration services
Sovereign Superannuation Funds Limited 100 Superannuation scheme manager
Westside Properties Limited 100 Assel leasing

Adl enkties were incorporated in New Zeatand

14 Intangible Assets

30 June
30 June
30 June

Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 July 2017 7 23 ] 35
Additions - 6 i 7
Disposals and write-offs U] {3) (6) {10)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 & 26 1 33
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Balance at1.July 2017 - {18) [CH) {20)
Amortssaticn expense (1) {) [§)] {3}
Disposals and write-ofis 1 - 4 5
Balance as at 30 June 2018 - U7} h {18)
Net carrying value at 30 June 2018 6 9 - 15
Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 July 2016 g 22 [ 37
Additions - ] 1 1
Disposals and write-offs {2) {5) 1) (8}
Balance as at 30 June 2017 7 23 6 16
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment tosses

Balance at 1 July 2016 - (19) (3 (22)
Amortisation expense (2) 2) (2) &)
Disposals and whte-offs 2 5 i 8
Balance as at 30 June 2017 - {16) {4 (20}
Net carrying value at 30 June 2017 7 ¥ 2 16

15 Trade and Other Receivables

Investment receivables

Outstanding premiums

Amounts due from related parties 22
Amounts due from reinsurers

Agent balancas raceivables

Cther assets

Total trade and other rece|vables

All frade and other receivables have an expected settlement date of lass than 12 months,

15 16
7 i7
1 1
7 12
1 1
9 1
60 48

L

e
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16 Retirement Benefit Surplus
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full each year.

SSRF is a superannuation scheme wiih a defined benefit sectron and a delined contribution seckon. The iast full triennial actuarial
review was completad in 2016. The nexi triennfal actuarial review 1s scheduled for 31 March 2019,

Reconclilation of amounts recagnised ity the Balance Sheet

Present value of funded obligations 3) {3)
Fair value of fund assets 9 3
Surplus 6 &
Adjustment for limit on the use of nef assets * {5) (6}
Total retirement benefit surphis (Incluslve of specifled

superannuatien contribution withholding tax) 1 -

* GSRFs estimated net assets at 30 June 2018 were $9 million (30 June 2017 59 million), but a large part of the value of the surplus
assets cannot be brought into the emplover's financig! statements, This 1s because SSI. is not expected to be able to make use of all the
surplus assess for its future emplayer contributions due to the current size of SSRF's membership.

17 Llife Insurance and Life Investment Contract Liabilities

Reconclilation of movements in policy lablitles

Balance &t the beginning of the period ce 146 739 835
{Decrease)fincrease in liabilities recognised in the Incomne Statement,

excluding reinsurance and deferred fee income reserve 27 2N 59 52
Loans on pelicies recognised as a decrease i policy lisbilities - (% - -
Decrease in deferred fee Income reserve recognised in the

Income Staternent - - (3) (%)
Beposit premium recognised as an Increase in policy lisbilities - - 21 24
Clairns recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities - - (1086) {167)
Total policy Habllitles 73 100 710 732

Expected reallsation maturity analysls

Expected realisation of pollcy llabliltles as at 30 June 2018 {10} {23} i06 73
Expected realisation of policy {tabllitles as at 30 June 2017 {i3) (26) 139 100

The maturity value of ife investrnent contract liabiities 1s determined by the fair vaiue of the linked assets at maturity date, Refer to
note 31 for a contractual maturity analysss of hfe investenent contract liabiities.

ittt Bt

Liabilitles ceded under relnsurance

Balance st the beginning of the peried 13 9 - -

{Decrease)/increase In liabilities ceded under reinsurance recognised in the

Incomne Statement (3} 4 - -

Total ilabllitles ceded under relnsurance 10 13 " -

Maturity analysis

Under one year 9 1 . -

Greater than one year 1 2 - -
10 13 - -
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17 Life Insurance and Life Investment Contract Liabilitles (continued)

Policy llabllities related to quarantees

Palicy llabilifies with a discretionary particspation feature
Valuatlon of policy llabllitles

Cash fiows net of tax:

Future policy benefits

future bonuses

future expenses

Future planned margins of revenue over expenses
Future premiums

Unvested policyholder benefits

Deferred {ax gross up

Total policy llabllities

649 639
8,07 1447
70 82
3,207 3,03
1,248 Wis
{12,062) {11,265)
73 72
(531) (514)
73 100

Life investment coniract policy labitfies with an investment performance guarantee at 30 June 2018 were $7 mitlion {30 June 2017 57

milhion).

Life Insurance confract llabilliles future net cash Inflows

Under one year
Between one and five years
Greater than five years

34 31
1,071 1,038
3,977 3,889
5362 5,238

The table abave shows the estimated timing of undiscounted future net cash flows resulting from hie insurance contract habilities. This
includes estimated future surrenders, claims and maturity benefiis, and bonuses, offset by expected future premitms and reinsurance
recoveries. Ali values are undiscouned te the reporting date using the assumed {uture investment earning rate for each product.

18 Deferred Taxation Liabiiity

Balance at beqginning of year
Recogrised in the Income Statement

Totai deferred taxation llabllity

Deferred taxatfon relates to:
Life insurance and Iife investmeni condract liabdities
QOther

Tota! deferred taxatlon Hability

Deferred taxation recognised in the Inceme Statement:

Life insurance and life investment contract lishilities

Other

Total deferred taxation recognised In the Income Statement

509 532
19 (23)
528 509
528 510
- 0]
528 502
18 (17}
1 63
19 23)
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19 Trade and Other Payables

Qutstanding claims 60 58
Expense crechtors 12 13
Prepaid premiums 9 n
Empioyee benefits 14 15
Investmenit creditors 2 4
Agent balances ) &
Amgounts due to reinsurers 1 1
Tota! frade and other payables 104 108

As at 30 June 2018 all frade and other payables have an expected seitlement date of fess than 12 months, with the exception of $2m
long term employee benefits {30 June 2017 52m).

A maturity analysis of current and non-current financial liabihities 1s presented in note 31.

20 Confributed Capital

Issued ordinary share caplial
Balance &t beginning of year 540 540
Balance at end of year 540 540

Share capital includes 4,805,849 ordinary shares paid to $74.22 and 183,000,000 ordinary shares paid to $100 (30 June 2017
4,805,845 ordinary shares paid to $74.22 and 183,000,000 ordinary shares paid to $1.00}.

All ordinary shiares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends snd surplus on winding up.

Dividersd on ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June 2018 was $131m (30 June 2017 $82m}, equating to $0.70 per share (30 June
2017 50.44).
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21 Capital Management
The objectives of the Group with regard Lo the rmanagement of capital adequacy are:

(0 mamniain a level of target surplus which creates a buffer over minimum regulatory capital while still allowing for efficient use of
capital;

() maintain a strong capiial base fo cover the inherent risks of the busmess; and

iy support the future development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value.

The SACL Board has ulhmate responsitality for compliance with the solvency standard and managing capital. The SACL Board
approves the capital policy and minimurm capttal levels and limits, Mimmum capital {evels are set based on maintaining a target surplus
In excess of solvency margin requirements ender the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business 1ssued m accordance with IPSA.
Under 1ts ficence, the RBNZ requires SACL to hold a solvency margin of at izast S (30 June 2017 S0 for each bie fund. SACL has two
hfe funds, the Statutory Fund and the Other fund.

[f the SACL Board has reasonable grounds te believe that a failure to maintain a solvency margin in either ife fund 15 Iikely to occur at
any time within the next 3 years, the likely failure must be reported to the RBNZ as soon as is reasonably practicable Compliance with
these requirements 15 a continuous obligation. As & mimmurm, calculations must be undertaken twice a year, at six monthly infervals,
and reported to the RBNZ.

Target surplus 15 & capital buffer held on top of regulatory requirements to ensure the likelhood of a breach of regufatory
requirements is at & level consistent with SACL's risk appetite. The level of target surpius takes account of management assessments
of actual risk and forecasts/stress testing of future capital requirements. The SACL BARC approves the methodology and basis for
determiming target surplus.

The soivency position of SACL for the two hie funds 1s as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Actual solvency capital 573 107 680
bMinimum solvency capital 497 o8 595
Solvency margin 76 9 85
Solvency ratio 115% 109% 4%

For the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual solvency capitzal 802 in 713
Mirimum selvency capital 482 a1 573
Solvency margin 120 20 140
Solvency ratio 125% 123% 125%
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22 Related Party Transactions and Balances

Buring the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group has entered into, or had i place, financial iransactions with the following reporting
entities:

¢ The Commonwesith Bank of Australia Group {the Overseas Banking Group} 15 domiciled in Australia and comprises CBA, the
worlgwide activities of CBA, and its conirolied entities; and

» The CBA New Zealand Banking Group (the NZ Banking Group) refers to all New Zealand banking operations of the Overseas
Banking Group, primarily comprising ASB Bank Limiked (ASB).

The above related parties ceased being related on 2 July 2018 when the Group was acouired by AlA.
Related Party Transactions

Curing the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

[ncome

Interest received from NZ Banking Group 4 4

Dividends received frem Overseas Banking Group 5 8

Fees recewved from NZ Banking Group 2 2

Fees received from superanauation schemes managed by a subsidiary of SACL - 1

Net realised/unrealised gains on fund certsficates managed by the Overseas Banlung Group 2 45

Nat realised/unrealised gans on fund cerbificates managed by the NZ Banking Group 35 -

Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains on dervatives issued by the NZ 8anking Group (i9) 19
29 T

Expenses

Paid to Overseas Banking Group for investment management services 1 1

Paid to NZ Banking Group for administratve services 12 12

Paid te NZ Banking Group for insurance comrmission 44 42
57 55

Related Party Balances

Overseas Banking Group

Assets

Securitles* A2 3

Recoverable expenses related to sale of business to AlA 4 -

NZ Banking Group

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 184 204

Securites” 328 -

Trade and other recewvables 1 1

Dervative assets - 1
513 216

Llabiliftes

Derivative liabilities 4 1

4 i

* These securities bafances represent investments i external fund certificates (ssued by the funds managed by the Overseas Banking
Group and the NZ Banking Group. The underiying exposure to related party secunties is $im as at 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017 51m).

Refer to the Statement of Changes in Equity and nate 20 for details of dividends paid to the Sharehoider

The Group is the sponsor, investment manager and assists with administration of ane otf-balsnce sheet employee superannuation
scheme {refer nole 16).

Puring the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group participated in the Colonsal Mutual Lite Assurance Society Limited (CMLA) catastrophe
cover reinsurance programme. Refer note 29 "Risk Management Policies” under Insurance Risk. This insurance cover is continuing
post safe to AlA.
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23 Directors and Key Management Personnet

Shorf term empioyee benefits 5 5
Directors fees 1 1
Total directors and key management personnel compensation S 6

Provissons for short term benefits 4 1
Provisions for long ferm benefiis 1 2

Kay management personnel are defined as members of the executive lezdership team. The Group has ne other matenal transactions or
balances with drectors and key management persannel.

24 Leasing Commitments and Capital Commitments

The following non-cancellable cperating lease commitrents existed at the end of the vear:

Within one year 5 5
Between one and five years 22 21
Qver five years 12 18
Tokal leasing commitments g 44

All of the Group's teases are classified as operating {eases as a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor.

0On & October 2005, SSL signed an 18-yvear lease on Soveraign House, its head office premises at Smales Farm, Auckland The fease term
ccmmenced i October 2007, & fired rate of increase will b2 apphed ta the annual lease cost 551 has a number of olher properties
under operating leases The leases have a variety of lease periods and & number of the leases contain oplions ko renew Payments made
under operating leases are charged to the Income Statement on 2 straight-line basis over the penod of the ease.

Capital commitments
The group has no mateniat capital comrmtrnents as at 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017 mil).
25 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Group's financial assets and financigt fizbidies are measured on ars onrgomg bases either at fair vatue or amortised cost
The fair value of a financial Instrument is the price that would be received to sell a financial assef, or paid to transter a hinzncial liabity, in
an orderly transaction batween market participants at the measurement date.

A sigmificant number of financiat instruments are carned on the Balance Sheet at fair value The best ewdence of tar value is a quoted

market price in an active market Therefore, where possible, fair value is based on guoted market prices Where a quoted markel price

tor a financial mstrument s not avallable, ks fair value is based on present value estimates or other valuation technigues based on

current market conditions These valuation techriques rely on market observable inputs wherever possible, or in kmited instanges, rely

on inpuis which are unchservable but are ressonzble assemptions based on market conditions

there are three fevels in the hierarchy of fair value measurements which are based on the inputs used to measure fair values:

= Levell: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted} in aclive markets for identical financial assets or Tinancial labilities that the Group can
access. Levellassels comprise:

Equity and property securities measured based on the bid market price quoted by the stock exchange,

External fund certificates measured based on the unadjusted urut price provided from the fund manager

Bank bonds and government bunds measured based on a quoted bid market price or third party pricing information

@

»  Level 20 where quoted market prices are nal available, farr values have bean esfimated using present value or other valushon
techmigues using mpufs that are observable for the financial asset or financial liabisty, either directly or indicectly. Level 2 assels
comprise:

External fund cerbficates measured based on the most recently avalable urit price from the fund manager at the time of
valugtion, adysted appropriately using market chservable benchmarks to accurately reflect the far value
Corporate bonds measured based on therd party pricing information

Held for trading foreign exchange contracts measured based on market observable foregn currency inputs sourced frem
third party pricing information

e Level 3. Fair values are estimated using inputs that are unobservable for the financial asset or financial liability.
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25 Falr Value of Financiat Instruments (continued)

{a) Fair Value of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

The {ciloving table presents an analysis by level In the faw value hierarchy of the far value measurements of financial
staternents that are recognised and measured at fair value on a recurring bass,

fic
As at 30 June 2018
Financial assets
Securities
Equnty securites and fund certiicates 213 461 - 674
Fixed interest securties 847 13 - 860
Propesty securities 66 » - 66
Tofal finanzial assets measurad at fair value 1,126 474 - 1,600
Financial iabilities
Derivative liabiigies - 4 - 4
Life investment contract liabifities - TI0 - 710
Total financial lfabilities measured at fair value - Ti4 - Ti4
As at 30 June 2017
Financlal assefs
Securitles
Equiiy securities and fund certificates 224 457 - 681
Fized mterest securities 825 14 - 839
Property secunities 74 - - 74
Derivative assets - 1 - 1
Total financial assets measured at falr value 1,123 482 - 1,605
Financlal liabllitles
Derivative liabities - 1 - 1
Life investment conlract liabilities - 739 - 739
Total financial llabilities measured at fair value - 740 - 740

(b) Falr Value of Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

The following table sets out and compares the {air values of financial instruments not measured at fair value with thewr carrying
amourits.

Financlal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 461 461
Trade and other receivables 60 60
Total flnancial assets not measured at falr vatue 521 521

Financial Liabitities
Trade and cther payables 81 81
Total financial liabilities not measured at fair value 81 8
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25 Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

{b) Falr Value of Financlal Instruments Not Measured at Falr Value {continued)

Flnanclal Assels

Cash and cash equivalents 5356 536
Trade and other recevables 48 48
Total financlal assets not measured at falr value 584 584
Financlal Liabllities

Trade and other payables 52 82
Total flnancial llabliitles not measured at falr value 82 82

26 Categories of Financial Instruments

The following tables summarise the carrying amounis and fair values of categories of financial assets and financial liabilities. Refer to
note WE) for a description of the categeries and how fair values are estimated.

As at 30 Jupe 2018

Financlzl assets

Cash and cash eguivalents - - 461 - 481 461
Trade and other receivables - - 60 - 60 60
Securities - 1,600 - - 1,600 1,600
Total financlal assets - 1,600 521 - 2,121 2121
Flnancial [labilities

Trade and other payabies - - - 81 Bl 81
Derivative lisbilibes 4 - - - 4 4
Life investment contracts . Ti0 - - 710 710
Tetal financial {labllitles 4 710 - 81 795 795
As at 30 June 2017

Financial asseis

Cash and cash equivalents - - 536 - 536 536
Trade and other recewvables - - 48 - 48 48
Securities . 1,554 - - 1,554 1594
Derivative assets 1 - - - 1t . 1
Total financlal assets il 1.594 584 - 2,185 2,189
FInancial flabllities

Trade and other payables - - - - 82 BZ g2
Dervative liabilities 1 - - - i 1
Life investment confracts - 732 - - 739 739
Total financtal [fabilltles 1 739 - 82 822 822
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27 Asset Quality
The Group has no material impaired or past due assets.
Credit Quality of Financial Assets that are not Past Due or Impalred

Cash and Cash Eguivalents
The Standard and Poors {S&P} credit ratings for the Group's majer cash holdings are®

Westpac New Zealand Limited Ad- AA-
ANZ Bank New Zealand Limiteg AA- AA-
Citibank NA A+ At
Securities

Tre Group holds fixed interest securities 1ssued by counterparties with the following S&P credit ratings:

Ratings

AAR - - 5 4 S 4
AA+ 3 32 75 753 a0s 785
AA 2 2 32 32 34 34
AA- 0 1 - - 10 fl
A+ 2 2 - - 2 2
A 1 - - - 1 -
A- 2 3 - - 2 3
Total fixed Interest securlties 48 50 812 789 860 839

* For investraent-linked assets, the liabibty to pohtyholders is linked to the performance of and value of the assefs that back these
liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any risk in the assets which back these liabiiities,

Credit ralings sre not provided for equity and property secunties because they are not subject te credit risk,

Derivative Financial Instruments
The counterparty for the Group's derivative financal instruments at balance date is ASB Bank Limited.

Investment Recenvables

This balance comprises oulstanding sales. accrued interesi, and outstanding dividends. All cutstanding sales have subsequently been
settled. The credit ratings of counterparties for which accrued interest arises are disclosed in the table above. Cradil risk associsted with
outstanding dividends is deemed to be negligible.

Cutstanding Premiums

Outstanding premiums are primarily aged less than 30 days, and in the case of parikipating pelicies, have surrender values that are
equal to or greaker than the premium amount outstanding.

Amounts Due from Remnsurers
The credit ratings for the Group's major reinsurers are :

General Reinsurance Life Australia Limited 5&P Ab+ SEP Ab+

RGA Reinsurance Company of Ausirala Limited S&P AA- S&P AA-
Swiss Re Life and Heslth (Auskralia) Limited S&P AA- S&F AA-
Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia Limited S&P AA- S&P AA~
Lioyd's S&P A+ S&P A+
Assicuraziom Generali S.P.A. AM Best A AM Best A
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28 Disaggregated Information

MZ IFRS 4 reguires a life insurer to disclose disaggregated information for each Iife fund, as defined in the solvency standards under
IPSA, Disaggregated snformation for major components of the Group's life funds are presented in the tables below,

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Prermiym income 629 1 630 a8
Investment income T2 &9 14 -

Claims expense 340 - 340 55
Qther operating expenses 256 8 264 3
Investment income paid or allocated to policyholders 53 69 122 -

Net profit befora tax 177 5 122 13
Net profit after tax 79 7 86 10
Net distrsbutions made from funds {115) - {15} (i56)

For the year ended 30 June 2017

Premium income £33 1 534 g2
[nvestment income 23 T2 95 4
Claims expense 332 - 332 50
Other operating expenses 257 8 265 31
Investrnent incorne paid or allocated to policyholders 19 T2 N .
Net profii before tax B6 18 104 1
Net profit after tax 88 10 98 2
Net distributions made feom funds 73) - (73} 9
As at 30 June 2018

tife insurance contract lisbilifies/ (asseis) 1a3 - 183 (10}
Ufe mvestment contract habilities - 710 710 -
Other liabilities 591 1 592 3z
Retained profits/(lesses) directly attributable

to shareholders 197 3 200 a7
Investment assels 991 509 1,600 “
Other assets 370 90 460 70
As at 30 June 2017

Life insurance contract iabilifies/(assets) 202 - 202 {102}
Life investment contrack liabdities - 739 739 -
Other lighilities 582 i 583 29
Retained profits/(losses) directly attributable -

to shareholders 222 6 228 o)
Investment Assets 969 625 1,594 -
Other Assets 427 05 532 83

Severelgh Assurance Compzny Limited and Subsidiaries 32



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018

28 Disaggregated Information (continued)

IPSA requires a Iife insurer to allocale the operating profit or loss of a statutory fund or a category of business of a statutory fund, The
regulations define two categories of business: participating business and non-participating business. SACL tlassifies all its life

insurance business as participating business or non-participating business in order to ensure the appropriate aliocation of profi, as
shown balow:

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Participating net profit after tax 3 v k] -
Non-participating net profit after tax T6 7 83 10
Net profit allocated to shereholders 79 7 a6 10

For the year ended 30 June 2077

Participating net profit afier tax 3 - 3 -
Non-participating net profit after tax 85 10 95 2
Net profit atlocated to sharehoiders 88 10 98 2
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29 Risk Management Policies
Intraduction

The Groaup 15 exposed to risk through its fmancial assets, financial 4ahilities, reinsurance assets and iife nsurance contract iiabilities. Risk
management policies focus on ensuring cash flows from asseis are sufficient to fund ckhigations arising from life insurance and life
investment contracts. The primary risks are those of insurance, credit, market, liquidity, operational and strategic business risk.

The Group's risk function 15 the respensibiligy of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), who reports to the Chief Executive Officer. The Group's
risk management strategy I1s set by the Beard throwgh the BARC. This committee comprises members of the Board and is chaired by an
independent member of the Board. The CRO 15 responsible for implementation of risk managament strategy and all execufives have
responsibility for the day to day management of risk across the Group.

The Group has management structures and information systems fo manage ndwvidual risks, has separated risk ntaation and
manitoring tashs where feasible, and subjects all maienal systems {o regular review. Periodic assessments of all nisk management
systerns, key business processes and applications are undertaken by the internal audit function

The Group conducts sensitvity analyss to quantify the exposure to risk of changes in the key undeclying variables such as mterest rate,
currency rate, mortality, morbidity and inflation. The valuakions included in the reported results and the Group's best estimate of future
performance are calculated using certain assumptions ahout these variables. The movement in any key variable will impact the
performance and net assets of the Group and as such represents a risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the nisk categories that follow, 15 based on changes in economic conditions that are considered reasonably
possible at the reporting dste. The correlation of assumplions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate prefit impact,

but to demonstirate the impact of a specific assumption change, modelling had to be done on the basis that all other assumptions were
held constant.

The following secfions describe the risk management framework components:
Operational and Strategic Business Risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of economic gain or lass resuiting from nadequaie or fafed internal processes and
methodologies, pacple, systems ar external events.

Strategic business risk s defined as the risk of economic gain or 1oss resulting from changes in the business environmant caused by
economic, competitive, social frend or reguiatory factors.

Each business manager is responsible for the identification and assessment of these risks and for maintaining appropriste internal
controls, and 1s supported by Ehe Group's governance struciures, operatignsl nisk managerment framework gnd operational risk policy.

The Group's operational risk measurement meihedology combines expert assessenent of individual risk exposares with internal loss
data to determine potential losses and calculate operational risk ecenomie capital,

Buslness Continulty Management

Business Continuity Managemeni {BCM) within the Group mvolves jhe development, maintenance and testing of aciion plans to

manage business disruption risk. This ensures that business processes continue with minimal adverse impact on customers, staft,
products, services and brands.

BCM constitutes an essentiaf component of the Group's nisk management process by providing a contrelied respense to potenbal
operational risks that could have a significant impact on khe Group's crifical processes and revenue streams. It includes both cost
effective responses te mitigate the impact of risk events or disasters and ¢risis management plans to respond to crisis events.

A BCM programere including plan developrnent, testing and education is 1k place across all divisiens and includes technology disaster
recovery planning.

Internal Audit

The Group was serviced by ASB's Audit & Assurance function up to completion of the Sale Transaction on 2 July. Following completion,
the Audit & Assurance function will report to AlA's Head of Internal Audit for Australia and New Zealand.

Internal audit provides an independent assurance service designed to assist the Group in achieving its objectives by bringing a
systematic and disciplined approach to mnproving the effectiveness of risit management systems, the framework of controls, and
governance processes. Operational, comphance, financial and systems reviews of the Group's operalions are performed based on an
assessment of risk. The independeat internal audit funchion 1s ultimaiely accountable to the Board through the BARC.

The BARC meets on a regular basis to consider financial reporting, internal control, and corporate governance 1ssues. )t reviews the
interim and annual financial statements, the activities of the infernal and external auditers and monitors the relabionship between
management and the external auditors,
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29 Risk Management Policles (continued)
Insurante Risk
Insurance risk 1s risit. other than financial risk, that is transferred from the holder of a contract to the 1ssuer

The Group's objectives in manaqing risks enising from insurance business are:

(i) To ensure insurance risk is managed in accordance with the principles set oot in the Risk Appetite Statement, The Risk Appetite
Statement describes the Group's folerante sad intolerance to key risks via a set of statements and principles.

() To ensure that an appropriate relurn on capital 1s made i return for eccepting nsurance risk.

(i) To ensure that strong nternal controls are embedded within the business to mitigate underwriting risk,

(V)  To ensure that internal and external solvency and capital requirernents are met

{v} To use reinsurance as a compenent of Insurance risk management strategy.

Variations 1 claim levels will affect reported profit and shareholders® equity. The impact may be magnilied «f the varation leads o a
change in actuarial assemphbons which canngt be absorbed within the present value of planned margins for a8 group of related
producks.

Insurance risk may arise throegh the reassessment of the incidernce of claims, the trend of future clams and the effect of unforeseen
diseases or epidemics. I additfon, in the case of marbidity, the bime Eo recovery may ke longer than assumed, tnsurance risk s
controlled by ensuring underwriting standards adequately identify potential nisk, refaining the sight to amend premiums o risk policies
where appropriate and thraugh the use of reinsurance, The expertence of the Group's lfe insurance business is reviewed regularly.

Concentrations of insurance risk anise due to;

. Large sems assured on certain individuals. The {argest exposures all relate to mortalify.

. Geograghic concentrations due to employee group schemes, Buring the year ended 30 June 2018, SACL participated ' the CMLA
catastrophe cover reinsurance programme which provides cover of AUDS30 million for single event claims in excess of AUDS20
millign,

*  Geographic conceniralions due to a pandemic affecting hives in a certain country or region, SACL hias pandermic reinsurance
cover which provides cover for abnormally high mortality claims cost due to a pandemic of $60 million in excess of 125% of the
expected annual mortality claims cost.

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts

The nature of terms of ife insurance contracts wntten Is such that certain external variables can be iden&fied on which refated cash
flows for clairn payments depend. The table below provides an overview of these:

WNon-participating ife  Beaefits paid on death, Il health or  Benefils, defined by the Iife | - Mortality

insurance contracts maturity that are fixed and nsurance contract, are - Moerbidity

with fixed and guaranteed &nd not at the determined by the contract and - Discondinuance rates
guaranteed tarms discretion of the issuer, Premiums  are not directly affected by the

(term hfe and disabdity, may be guaranteed through ihe life performance of underlying assels

major medical] of the contract, guaranteed fora  or the performance of the

spectfied term or variable at the contracts as a whole
insurer’s discretion.

Life insurance These policies include a dearly Benefils arising from the - Mortality .

contracts with defined imtil guarankeed sum discretionary participation feature - Morbidity

discretionary assured which 1s payable on death.  are based on the pesformance of - Market nisk

participating benefits  The guaranteed amount s a a specified pool of contracis or a - Discontinuance rates

(endowrment and whole multiple of the amount that is specified type of conkract. - Market returns on underlying assets
of life) increased throughout the duration

of the policy by the addition of
reguiar bonuses annually which,
once added, are not removed,
Regular bonuses are also added
retrospectively,

Life annuity contracts  These polities provide quaranieed  The amount of the payment s set - Longevity

regular payments to the life at inception of the policy. - Market refurns on underlying assets
assurad.
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29 Risk Management Policies (continued)
Sensitivity to Insurance risk
Insurance risk 1S measured by using sensitivity analysis Lo shaw the effects on equity and profit The below sensitivities are calculated
based on all other assumnptions remataing unchanged.
Mortality rates

For life insurance contracts, greater mortality rates would lead to higher levels of claims accurring seoner than anlicipated, increasing
assocrated claims cosk and therefore reducing profit and shareholder's equity. This 1s offset by increased annuitant mortality which
would reduce expected [uture annudy payments and therefore reduce life insurance contract abilities.

Morbidity rates

The cost of health-related clarms depends on both the incidance of policyholders becoming il and the durat:on with which they remam
1ll. Higher than expected incsdence and duration would be fikely to increase claim costs, reducing profit and shareholders® equity.

Discontinszance
The wpact of the discontinuance rate sssurnption depends on a range of factors including the type of contract, the surrender value
basis (where applicable} and the duration in force, for example, an increase in discontinuance rates at earhier durajions of life

insurance confracts usually has a negalive effect on performance and net assefs, However, due to the interplay between the factors,
there 1s not always an adverse outcome to profits from an increase in discontinuance rates.

Insurance risks
Before After Before After
relnsurance relnsurance reinsurance relnsurance
Mortality Imnprovemeni by 10% 16 7 22 10
Deterioration by 10% (21) (13) (33) [e4)]
Morbidity Improvement by 10% B ) 8 5
Deterioration by 10%6 {65) {62) (35) (32}
Disconttinuance  improvernent by 20% 9 1 10 2
Deterioration by 20% {12) [£:H] (13} {8)
Expenses Increase by 109 {3) 3 A 4
Decrease by 10% z 2 4 4
Credlt RIsK

Creds risk is the potential risk for loss arising from failure of @ counterparty to meet their contractual obligations.

Credit risk principally anses vathin the Group from investments of sharehclder funds or funds where the shareholder participates in
investrent returns in ¢cash and fixed interest securities, and reinsurer payment cbhigations. Credit risk also arises from loans to agentis,
foreign currency contracts and trade receivables. Mo collateral exists for any of the securities held by the Group. The maxmum credit

risk associated with each class of recognised financial asset held by the Group 1s the carrying value. The Group has a credit policy that
covers the approval and management of all credit risk.

investrent concentrations for shareholder funds are managed within established guidelines and limits sef by the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO). Some criteria are referred fo the SACL BARC for approval, Gusdelines and himits are set for security credit ratings
and aggregate exposure to any single geographic region or counterparly as documented within the nvestment managerment
agreement.

Reinsurance is entered info for the purpose of risk transfer. The credit risk inherent in remnsurance arrangements 1s managed by
estabhshing minimum credit standards for rainsurers.

For investment iinked contracts the investments credit nsk 1s appropnate for each partwutar product and the risk 1s borne by the
policyholder. There is no significant credit risk assumed by the Group. The impact on the fair value of ife investment contract habilities
due to changes in credit risk i nil (30 June 2017 nil), except to the extent that the mariet value of securities backing liie investenent
contract kabifities is aifecied by changes In credit risk. Any such credit risk impact 1s refiected in the movement of securities balances
during the year,

The credit ratings of counterparties are disclosed in note 27.
Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficully in meeting obligations associated with financial liabihites that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Management of kquidify nisk is designed to ensure that the Group has the ahility to meet its financial chligations as they fall due.
Tha Group manages this risk by holding a pool of readily radable investraent assets and deposits on call. s
The maturity of life insurance and life investrent contract liabilities are disclosed in notes 17 and 3i respectively, g}’%%iﬁ
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurnent will Huciuate because of changes in market
prices.

market risk arises from ihe rmismaich between assets and (iabilifies. The Group is exposed to market risk on diverse financial
instruments including interest bearing assets, foreign currency investrents, equities, and derivative instruments, For each distinct
category of lisbilities, a separate portfolio of assets is maintained and investment mandates are set that are appropriate for each.

A sigrificant proportion of assels are held for investment linked policies where market risk is {ransterred to the policyholder. The
Group earns fees on investment linked policies that are based on the amount of assets invested and it may receive lower fees should
markets fall. Asset allocation for investment linked policies is ecided in accordance with the policyholders' fund selections.

Market risk arises on discretionary participation business as these contracts have investment guarantees. Risk is mitigated by using
an appropriate bonus / cradit rate policy and a suitable growth / income investment aflocation.

Market risk arises from returns obtained from investing the shareholders' funds feld in the Group. Appropriate investment
mandates are set by ALCO for the investment of shareholders’ funds. As at 3C June 2018, shargholders' funds in the Group were
irvested 196 (30 June 2017 196) in growth assets (equity and properiy) and 99%b (30 June 2017 999) in income assets (cash and
fixed interest).

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
{I} Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a financial instrumnent wilf tluctvate because of changes in foreign
currency rates.

The Group does not fully hedge foreign currancy denominated equity instrumnents. Adverse mavements in currency rates relating to
the New Zealand dollar will subseauently reduce khe value of poticyholder asseis and labilities.

The Group uses foreign currency forward confracts to mitigate its exposure to currency risk from foreign cureency denominated
investments, Global equity is hedged within the Collactive Investment Vehicle (CIV). The hedge ratio benchmark for Global Equities in
the CIV is 100%. All other equity and property investments denominated in foreign currency have a weighted average hedging ratio
of 67% {30 June 2017 679) and fixed interest investments dernominated in a foreign currency have a hedging ratio of 100% (30
June Z01710093). All investments denominated in emerging market currencies are unhadged.

{l) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vakie or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market inierest rates.

Fair valua interest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in interest rates to cause a fluctuation in the fair value of financial
instrumenis and &he vatue of life insurance contract lrabilities. Interest rate risk arises from the structure and characteristics of the
Group's assets, liabifitles and equity, and the mismatch in cash flows of its assets and liabilties, The objective is to manage the
Interest rate risk to achieve stable and sustainable net profit.

For fixed interest investments held to match fixad interest style products selected by policyholders, the interest rate risk is borne by
the policyholder,

Interest rate risk also arises on risk contracts where neqgative policy labilities (arising from the deferral of acquisition costs) are
valued at current risk-free interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the potential for a change in interest rates to change interest expense and interest income in the
current year and in fulure years,

The Group reduces interesk rate risk by seeking to match the cash flows of assets and liabilities.

Depending on the profile of the investment portfolio, the investment income of the Group will decrease as interest rates decrease.
This may be offset to an extent by changes in the market valze of fixed interest investments. The impact on profit and shareholder's
equity depends on the refative profites of assefs and liahlities. to the extent that these are not matched.
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Risk Management Policies (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Hows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from: interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the indwvidual
financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all sirular financial instruments traded in the market.

This rigk is managed by ensuring a diverse range of investments. iimits on counterparty exposure and restrictions on types of
ins{ruments.

Equity Prices

For life investment contracts and life insurance contracts with discretionary participation features, liabilities depend on the value of
upderlying assets. Equity price risk may be entirely borne by policyholders, However, the Group darives fee incomne based on ihe value
of the underlying funds; hence revenues are always sensifive to changes in market value, For assets which are not contractually inked
to policy labilities, the Group is exposed to equity price risk.

Sensltlvity to market risk

Market risk is rmeasured by Lsing sensitivity analysis to model changes in interest rates, equity values and foreign currency rates,

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of reported profit and loss efter tax and equity to changes in market risk assumptions:

Market risks
After
Before reinsurance  After relnsurance Befere reinsurance  reinsurance
Equity prices  Favourable by 10% 1 1 ] H
Adverse by 10% m 13] )] m
Interest rates  Increase of 100 bps {17) {13) 16) (13)
Decrease of 100 bps 19 15 17 14

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters into derivative transactions which provide economic hedges for risk exposures but do not meet the accounting
requirements for hedge accounbing treatment. The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts as economic hedges to
manage currency risk (refer note 1f). Gains or losses on the forward contracts have been recorded in investment income with the gaing
or fosses on the investments they have hedged.

The forward currency contracts taken aut do not exceed three months. At balance date these contracts have varying maturity dates.

Fatce and Fair Yalues

The face value is the contractual ameunt of the derivatives and provides & basis for cornparison with instruments recognised on the
Balance Sheet. This amcunt 15 net exchanged and does not indicate the Group's exposure ta credit risk. The amount predominantly acts
as a reference value upon which the net settiements can be caiculated and on which revaluaiion is based. The face value of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the favourable or unfavourable market values of these instrumenis, and the conseguent aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabifities can fluctuate significantly from time to ime.
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Derivative Financial Instruments {continued)

The fair values of derivative financiat instruments held are set out in the following table:

Flnancial instruments subject to enforceable master netting agreements

Forward ¢ontract asseis - il
Total derivative financlal assets - il
Forward contract liabilities 4 1
Total derivative financia! abliltles 4 1
Total net derivative financial instruments * (4} 10

*Whilst master netting arrangements are in place, derivative assels and derivalive liabitities are presented gross on the balance
sheet. The Group does not have any collateral arrangements in refation to these financial instruments.

Currency confracts face value

Forward contract assets 3 a7
Forward contract Habilities 270 125

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

on W' PRILE
As at 30 June 2018
Non derivative financlai liabilities
Trade and other payables & 70 - - - 5 81 Bt
Life investrnent contracts 692 - M 1 2 4 599 710
698 70 - 1 2 9 780 9
Derlvative financial llabllitles
Inflows from derivatives - 143 - “ - - 143
Qutflows from derivatives - (148) - - - - {146)
- (3) - - - - {3)
As at 30 June 20717
Non derivative financlai {labllities
Trade and other payables 6 72 - - - 4 82 82
Life investment contracis 677 2 2 [ 13 46 746 139
683 74 2 6 13 50 828 821
Derivative flnanclal ltabllitles
Inflows from derivatives - 125 - - - - 125
Cutfiows from derivatives - {126) - - - - (126)
- ) - - - - (1)

The above analysis :5 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. Where the counterparty has discretion in requesting payment,
liabilities have been classified according to the earliest time period in which the Graup may be required to pay. Refer to note 29 for
details of how the Group manages liquidity risk.

Funds Under Management and Administration

The Group tmanages and administers investment products that are clesed to new business. As at 30 June 2018 the Group had $707
million funds under management and administration {30 June 2017 $737 million). The Group utilises external fund managers ang
snvestenent consultanks in the management of these funds, including entities which are feliow CBA subsidiaries (refer note 22).

e
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33 Events after the Reporting Period

On 21 September 2017 CBA announced the sale of 100% of its life insurance businesses in Australia and New Zeafand, of which SACL s
a part, to AlA International Limited a subsidiary of AlA for AUD $3.8 billion. The sale of the New Zealand life insurance businass te AlA
was completad and becare effective after the reporting perlod, on 2 July 2018, Refer to note 1 Statement of Accounting Policles,
General Accounting Policies for {further details.

Due to the sale, the registered address for Sovereign Assurance Cornpany Limited, changed from Level &, ASB North Wharet, 12 Jellicoe
Street, Auckland, 1010, New Zealand to Savereign House, 74 Taharoto Roat. Takapuna, Auckiand, 0622, New Zealand on 12 July ZO18.

On 2 July 2018, the Graup entered into a significant reinsurance agreement with an existing reinsurer {refer note (k) and 27). This
new arrangement will impack reinsusance expense and recoveries going forward, However, at the Bme of completing these accounts,
the Group is working through the impact this new reinsurance arrangernent will have on the future profitabitity of the Group.

As part of the sale agreement, AlA international Lirnited has entered into a 20 year distribution agreement for the provision of life
insurance products to CBA and ASB customers in Australia and New Zealand.

There were no ofher evenis subseguent to the reporting peritod which would materially atfact the finanzial staternents.

pwe
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholder of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 30 June 2018;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a statement of accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (the
Company), including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2018, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(NZ IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
NZ) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group through an assurance engagement over the solvency
return and an agreed upon procedures engagement. The provision of these other services has not
impaired our independence as auditor of the Group. In addition, certain partners and employees of
our firm may deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of
the Group.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not, express
any form of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material

' PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
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misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs NZ and ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:

https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-
report-5/
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Who we report to
This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partneron the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Karl Deutschle.
For and on behalf of: -

Qm\re\ﬂw&w@

Chartered Accountants Auckland
6 August 2018
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Appointed Actuary’s Report
To the Directors of Sovereign Assurance Company Limited
This Appointed Actuary’s report under Section 78 of the Insurance (Prudential

Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act) is prepared in respect of the financial statements of

Sovereign Assurance Company Limited (SACL) for the 12 month period ended
30 June 2018,

I have undertaken a review of the actuarial information (as defined in section 77(4) of
the Act ) contained in, and used in the preparation of, the financial statements of
SACL (the Financial Statements) as required under section 77(1) of the Act.

My review has been carried out in accordance with the Solvency Standard for Life
Insurance Businesses issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under section 55
of the Act (the Life Solvency Standard) and with the New Zealand Society of
Actuaries’ Professional Standards.

In respect of my review, | confirm as follows:

{2) |, Doune Connett FNZSA, am the appointed actuary for SACL under section
76(1) of the Act, and that | have prepared this report

{b) The work that | have done io review the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Financial Statements, includes a review of:

(i)  information relating to SACL's calculations of premiums, claims, reserves,
dividends, insurance and annuity rates, and technical provisions;

(i) information relating to assessments of the probability of uncertain future
events occurring and the financial implications for SACL if those events
do oceur;

(i) SACL's Policy Liability, as defined in the Life Solvency Standard;

(iv) reinsurance and other recovery assets relevant to the Policy Liability, or
relevant to outstanding claims reserves incurred but not reported claims
reserves held outside of the Policy Liability;

(v} any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liability;

(vi) any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the
Policy Liability;

{vii) the unvested policyholder benefits liability;

{viil) the crediting and bonus rates used for participating and investment
account contracts;

(ix) the analysis of SACL's profit and the movement in the solvency margin;

() the sensitivity of SACL's profit to changes in insurance and market risk
assumptions;

{(xi) the assumptions used in the calculation of the Policy Liability and the

solvency margin and the impacts of changes in those assumptions;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(xii) the methodology used to calculate the Policy Liability and the Solvency
Margin;

(xiii) the consistency between the New Zealand Society of Actuaries
Professional Standard 20 “Determination of Life Insurance Policy
Liabilities”, SACL's valuation methodology document, and the calculated
Policy Liability; and

(xiv) SACL'’s checks and controls over data, valuation and solvency calculation
processes.

| am an employee of Sovereign Services Limited, a subsidiary of SACL. At the
time of preparing this report, as well as being the appointed actuary, | was also
Chief Risk Officer for SACL, a trustee of the Sovereign Staff Retirement
Scheme and a director of AIA Sovereign Limited, Sovereign Services Limited,
Sovereign Superannuation Trustees Limited, Sovereign Superannuation Funds
Limited and Westside Properties Limited. | do not have any other relationship
with, or interests in, SACL or any of its subsidiaries.

| have obtained all information and explanations that | have required in order to
conduct my review under section 77 of the Act.

| consider that in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

(i) the actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements have been
appropriately included in those Financial Statements; and

(i)  the actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial
Statements has been used appropriately.

| consider that in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective SACL, as at
30 June 2018, is maintaining a solvency margin that complies with that required

under the Life Solvency Standard for the purposes of section 21(2)(b) of the
Act.

| consider that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective and as at
30 June 2018, SACL is maintaining solvency margins that comply with those

required under the Life Solvency Standard for the purposes of section 21(2)(c)
of the Act.

| have prepared, dated and signed this report solely in my capacity as SACL's
appointed actuary under section 76(1) of the Act. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone other than the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand, SACL, its Board and shareholder for the contents of this report.

M@/Muﬂt

pated 2/ 8/ 2018

Doune Connett
Appointed Actuary

Auckland
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